
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Workshop Minutes – August 13, 2018 and September 10, 2018 

B. Approval of Minutes – September 4, 2018 

C. Resolution 18-37 Certifying Delinquent Accounts – Anoka County 

D. Highway 65 Signal Painting Joint Powers Agreement – Anoka County 

E. Contractor’s Licenses 

F. Correspondence 

6. POLICE REPORT 

7. PARKS AND RECREATION REPORT 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Parking Lot Lease – Buchanan Street 

B. Triangle Park Gazebo Footing Installation  

C. Conditional Approval for Building Permit Issuance Agreement for Public Storage 

9. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

10. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

11. REPORTS 

12. ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 

13. OTHER 

A.  Closed Session – Motion to Close Meeting to Discuss Potential Sale of 525 Osborne  

      Road NE 

14. ADJOURN 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

AND DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the special work session meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on August 13, 2018 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 5:30 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 
 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 

 
2. Roll Call    

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 
   

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Administrator Buchholtz, Chief Ebeltoft, Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall, 
Public Works Director Randall, Building Official Brainard, Accountant Anderson 

 

Visitors: None 
 

3. Agenda  

 
A. 2019 Administrator’s Budget Proposal 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the 2019 Administrator’s Budget proposal.  He stated that the budget was 

a balanced budget, with revenue and expenditure growth equaling 3.74%.  He stated that the increases in the 
proposed 2019 budget were due to increases in the cost of health and dental insurance, employee salaries, I.T. 

mandates for the Police Department, increase in the building department’s seasonal line item, and increases in 

the required PERA Police and Fire pension fund. 
 

Administrator Buchholtz asked if the City Council wished to amend the City Council salary ordinance to 

increase their salary.  Consensus of the City Council was to keep the Mayor and City Council salaries at present 

levels. 
 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the phase out of the liquor fund transfer.  He stated that the proposed 

transfers would be $75,000 in 2019, $50,000 in 2020 and $0 in 2021 and beyond.  He stated that there would 
be a $1.7 million balance in the liquor fund which the City Council could utilize for any public purpose 

expenditure or could set aside in reserves. 

 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that the proposed 2019 property tax levy is as follows: 

 

 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the following revenue and expenditure budget for 2019. 

2018 2019 % difference

General Government 3,018,257.00         3,169,666.00         5.02%

Debt Service Levy 264,184.00           264,184.00            0.00%

TOTAL 3,282,441.00        3,433,850.00         4.61%



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 August 13, 2018 

 

2019 Proposed Budget - City of Spring Lake Park

2018 2019 % difference

Revenue:

Tax Levy 3,018,257.00$       3,169,666.00$        5.02%

Intergovernmental Revenue 547,134.00            543,310.00            -0.70%

Permits and Licenses 158,032.00            157,152.00            -0.56%

Charges for Current Services 113,708.00            142,909.00            25.68%

Miscellaneous Revenues 139,606.00            111,978.00            -19.79%

Interfund Transfers 185,240.00            189,172.00            2.12%

TOTAL 4,161,977.00$       4,314,187.00$       3.66%

Expenditure:

City Council 57,419.00$            57,498.00$            0.14%

Administration 436,675.00            478,682.00            9.62%

Assessor 35,500.00             35,500.00              0.00%

Audit 9,847.00               10,737.00              9.04%

I.T. 28,580.00             38,020.00              33.03%

Legal 120,000.00            120,000.00            0.00%

Engineering 9,000.00               8,000.00               -11.11%

Planning and Zoning 1,592.00               1,400.00               -12.06%

Government Buildings 103,332.00            101,904.00            -1.38%

Police 1,716,644.00         1,852,609.00         7.92%

Fire 274,310.00            262,861.00            -4.17%

Code Enforcement 166,090.00            192,036.00            15.62%

Streets 236,380.00            257,769.00            9.05%

Recreation 335,767.00            367,824.00            9.55%

Parks 283,884.00            322,997.00            13.78%

Miscellaneous 346,957.00            206,350.00            -40.53%

TOTAL 4,161,977.00$       4,314,187.00$       3.66%

 
 

Council discussed the proposed 2019 budget.  Consensus of the City Council was to refer the proposed 2018, 

payable 2019, property tax levy to the September 4, 2018 City Council meeting for possible action. 
 

B.  Illegal Non-Conforming Driveways 

 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that the City has been receiving a number of variance applications for illegal 

non-conforming driveways.  He stated that these illegal non-conforming driveways are being brought to the 

City’s attention as property owners are seeking driveway permits to repave them.  He said that he is seeking 
direction from the City Council on how to proceed. 

 

Councilmember Nelson provided a history of this issue from his previous tenure as a Mayor and 

Councilmember.  He stated that the previous City Council had wanted to allow the existing driveways to remain 
in place but that direction was never codified in the City Code.  He recommended allowing all the existing 

driveways to remain in place in an effort to prevent future neighbor conflicts due to actions of the past.  

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff expressed her opinion that every property owner should apply for a 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 August 13, 2018 

 
driveway permit and allow a public process to be held to address any issues resulting from these driveways 

which were installed in the past.  Councilmember Nelson stated his belief that the City had its opportunity to 

address this matter when it established the placement of the curb cuts when the curb and gutter was installed.  

Councilmember Wendling expressed his opinion that property owners should be allowed to replace/maintain 
what is in existence today and that any expansion would require a variance.   

 

After further discussion, the consensus of the council was to prepare an amendment to the driveway ordinance 
allowing driveways encroaching in the required five foot setback to be maintained in their current form without 

the need for a variance. 

 
C.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz touched on the following topics: 

1. Primary Election on Tuesday, August 14, 2018. 
2. Possible sale of land by Prince of Peace Lutheran Church for residential development.  City 

Council’s preference was that any development should be single-family residential. 

3. Enforcement actions at 8355 University Avenue NE. 
 

4.  Adjourn 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 PM. 

 

              

       __________________________________ 
       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 
__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 





  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the special work session meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on September 10, 2018 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 5:30 

P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 

 

2. Roll Call    

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

   

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Administrator Buchholtz; Engineer Gravel; Peter Allen, Stantec; Public Works 

Director Randall 

 

Visitors: Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

 

3. Agenda  

 

A. Local Surface Water Management Plan 

 

City Engineer Phil Gravel presented highlights from the City’s Local Surface Water Management Plan 

(LSWMP).  Gravel stated that the LSWMP is required by the Metropolitan Council as part of the 

Comprehensive Planning Process and is completed in conjunction with the Metropolitan Council’s 2040 Water 

Resource Police Plan.  He stated that the draft LSWMP was completed in July 2018 and sent to local agencies 

for review.  He stated that the City’s LSWMP was drafted to be consistent with the goals and policies of the 

Coon Creek Watershed District and Rice Creek Watershed District.  He stated that some City ordinances will 

need to be revised based on the comments received from the watershed districts.  He noted that a revised version 

of the plan will be prepared later this year for City Council adoption. 

 

Peter Allen, Stantec, presented the results of the City’s storm water modeling study.  He stated that the purpose 

of the study was to 1) develop an XP Swim model of the City’s storm water system, 2) identify problem areas; 

3) development concept level possible options for problem areas; and 4) use the study to pursue funding.  Mr. 

Allen stated that the study defined four major problem areas – Terrace Street & 78th Avenue; Monroe Street 

and 83rd Avenue; Triangle Park Pond; and Garfield Pond Area (near Arthur Street and 81st Avenue) – and 

identified potential solutions for each area. 

 

Council discussed the storm water modeling study and the possible options for the four problem areas.  Staff 

asked City Council to prioritize the areas to address so that engineering staff can further evaluate each area and 

develop detailed engineering plans.  City Engineer Gravel stated that staff would also work with the watershed 

districts to determine which projects would be eligible for funding. 

 

No action was taken on the Local Surface Water Management Plan or the Storm Water Study. 

 

B.  Arthur Street Water Treatment Plant Maintenance 

 

Public Works Director Randall provided an overview of steps to date that have been taken to address the radium 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 September 10, 2018 

 

issue at the Arthur Street Water Treatment Plant.  He reported that Stantec will be performing a maintenance 

study on the Arthur Street Water Treatment Plant to develop a capital improvement plan for deferred 

maintenance, which could include replacing the plant media.  He stated that recommendations would be 

developed for future action by the City Council. 

 

No action was taken on this report. 

 

C.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz touched on the following topics: 

1. Updated PUD Development and Site Plan from Hy-Vee.  He stated that the size of the 

convenience store would be reduced from 8,700 square feet to 5,500 square feet while the size 

of the grocery store would be increasing from 76,001 square feet to 84,980 square feet.  He 

stated that the building would be within the original setbacks of the PUD and that the new site 

plan shows adequate parking that complies with the City’s parking code.  He noted that staff 

recommends this be considered a minor PUD amendment that can be approved 

administratively.  Consensus of the City Council was that the proposed amendments to the Hy-

Vee PUD Development and Site Plan were minor amendments and could be approved 

administratively. 

2. Reported that the City closed on its acquisition of the 525 Osborne Road NE property from the 

North Suburban Hospital District.  He stated that staff was currently negotiating a purchase 

agreement between the City and Interstate Development for the sale of the property. 

3. Reported that the City closed on its sale of 8059 Highway 65 NE to McClure Properties LLC. 

4. Provided guidance on the placement of campaign signs in the public rights-of-way. 

5. Reported that the 3 lots on McKinley Street were sold to Boulder Contracting and a building 

permit has been issued for one of the lots. 

 

4.  Adjourn 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 PM. 

 

              

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on September 4, 2018 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 

P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2. Roll Call    

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

   

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Building Official Brainard; 

Engineer Gravel; Attorney Thames; Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall;  

Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors: Vince Smith, 400 Lund Avenue NE  

 Colleen Pederson, Spring Lake Park Schools 

 Rebecca Yang, Dala 1 Inc. 

 Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

   

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff requested that Item 10A., Ordinance 447 Amending Zoning Ordinance 

Relating to Yards; Setbacks, be tabled until it could be discussed at a Council workshop session. Mayor Hansen 

reported that a workshop session was scheduled for September 10, 2018.  Councilmember Wendling reminded 

the Council that by tabling the item, a resident who would lose their deposit due the timeline of their application 

for a driveway variance.  

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF TO TABLE ITEM 10A 

ORDINANCE 447 AMENDING ZONING ORDINANCE RELATING TO YARDS; SETBACKS. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COUNCILMEMBER NELSON –NAY; WENDLING-NAY; DELFS-NAY AND MAYOR 

HANSEN-NAY. COUNCILMEMBER GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF- AYE. MOTION FAILED. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that Item 10D. Resolution 18-35 Authorizing Mayor and Administrator, 

Clerk/Treasurer to Execute Documents Facilitating the Transfer of 525 Osborne Road NE From the North 

Suburban Hospital District to The City of Spring Lake Park to be added to the agenda. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that Item 10E. Resolution 18-36 Authorizing Mayor and Administrator, 

Clerk/Treasurers to Execute Documents Facilitating the Transfer of 8059 Highway 65 NE From the City of 

Spring Lake Park to McClure Properties, LLC. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 September 4, 2018 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor 

 

Vince Smith, 400 Lund Avenue NE, addressed his concerns to the City Council with the proposed Ordinance 

Amending Zoning Ordinance Relating To Yards; Setbacks. He expressed his frustration with Councilmember 

Nelson in regards to remarks Nelson made about him at the August 13, 2018 Council Workshop. 

Councilmember Nelson apologized for those remarks. 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that the driveway situation throughout the City is of concern and very hard for everyone 

to agree upon. She confirmed that the Council and staff is working hard toward a good solution.  

 

Colleen Pederson, Director of Community Education for Spring Lake Park Schools, provided information on 

the Panther Foundation 5K and Family Carnival on Saturday, September 29, 2018. She explained the race 

course through the City and the events that will be held including tours of the district facilities. 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – August 20, 2018 

B. Budget to Date (July 31, 2018) 

C. Contractor’s Licenses 

D. Sign Permit 

E. Proclamation – October Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

F. Third Quarter Billing for 2019 Payable 2020 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

G. Correspondence 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired when the minutes from the Council Work Session on August 

13, 2108 would be available. Administrator Buchholtz stated that the minutes will be included on the agenda 

for the September 17, 2018 meeting. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COUNCILMEMBERS NELSON-AYE, WENDLING-AYE, DELFS-AYE AND MAYOR 

HANSEN-AYE. COUNCILMEMBER GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF- NAY. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7.  Public Works Report 

 

Public Works Director Randall reported that in the month of August, the Public Works Department 

continued to collect the garbage and recycling at the parks and weed whip at City facilities. He stated that 

the Department spread fertilizer at all the parks twice and removed a retaining wall at Able Park. He 

reported that a fence will be added near the site the wall was removed. 

 

Mr. Randall reported that the Department set up and removed barricades for Night To Unite and set up for 

the Primary Election. He stated that the Department has been working on cleaning out the sewers citywide 

and continues to paint crosswalks and stop bars. 

 

Mr. Randall reported that a rain garden was created in the back of the Blue Sun Soda shop to help alleviate 

storm water runoff.  Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired on the coast to install the rain garden and 

how much would it cost if a resident wanted to install a garden on their property. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 September 4, 2018 

 

Mr. Randall stated that the rain garden that was installed was less than $200. He stated that if a rain garden 

is required to be installed as part of a city construction project, there is usually no fee to the resident. He 

stated if residents wanted to install a rain garden themselves, the cost would be their responsibility. 

 

8. Code Enforcement Report 

 

Building Official Brainard stated that in August 2018, 19 building permits, 2 fire, 7 zoning, 12 mechanical, 9 

plumbing permits were issued for a total of 49 permits compared to a total of 57 in 2017. He reported that the 

Code Enforcement Department conducted 176 inspections in the month of August.  

 

Mr. Brainard reported construction continues rapidly at the Legends of Spring Lake Park. He stated that the 

landscaping, sod and sprinkler system is 100% complete. He stated that he continues to conduct final 

inspections on individual units in both Section A and B, and anticipates completion in late September.  

 

Mr. Brainard reported that he and Inspector Caldwell attended 11 block parties for Night To Unite. He stated 

that they distributed the Spring Lake Park Frequently Asked Questions handout to residents. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that the August 2018 vacancy listing shows that there are 11 vacant/foreclosed residential 

properties currently posted and/or soon posted by the Code Enforcement Department, which is down two from 

last month. There are two vacant/foreclosed commercial properties, which remains the same from last month; 

and two residential properties currently occupied and ready for Sheriff Sale redemption, which is up one from 

last month. He reported that he did not post any abandoned and/or vacant property notices in the month of 

August. He stated that the department did not issue any administrative offense tickets.  

 

Mr. Brainard reported that he attended the Council meetings on August 6 and 20;  Night To Unite on August 

7; a Council 2019 Budget Workshop on August 13; the Planning Commission meeting on August 28; a Hy-

Vee meet and greet meeting on August 28 and the North Suburban Building Officials meeting on August 28. 

 

9.  New Business 

 

A. 2018 Well No. 4 and 5 Maintenance Project Bid Results 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that bids were opened for the 2018 Well No. 4 and 5 Maintenance project on August 

24, 2018.  He reported that three bids were received. 

 

The following summarizes the results of the bids received: 

 

 Contractor       Total Base Bid 
Low Keys Well Drilling Company     $184,535.00 

#2 E.H. Renner & Sons, Inc.     $185,710.00 

#3 Traut Companies      $260,505.00 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that the low bidder on the project was Keys Well Drilling Company with a Total 

Base Bid of $184,535.00.  He stated that this compares to the Engineer’s Opinion of Probably Costs of $150,000 

to $200,000. He stated that these bids have been reviewed and found to be in order. 

 

Mr. Gravel stated that if the City Council wishes to award the project to the low bidder, then Keys Well Drilling 

Company should be awarded the project on the total Total Base Bid Amount of $184,535.00. He noted that 

this cost does not include all the repairs, as some of the repairs will need to be completed by an additional 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 September 4, 2018 

 

contractor. 

 

Mayor Hansen inquired if Mr. Gravel was comfortable with Keys Well Drilling Company as the contractor.  

He stated that he was. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE KEYS WELL DRILLING COMPANY FOR THE 

2018 WELL NO. 4 AND 4 MAINTENANCE PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $184,535.00. ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Authorization for Carpet Purchase 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff is seeking approval to purchase carpet for the following rooms at 

City Hall:  Council Chambers A and B, the Council Library and the hallway outside the Police entry.  He 

presented quotes from Jerry’s Floor Store and Cap Flooring and Painting, LLC.  He stated that two color 

options are available that best match the existing carpeting. He stated that the areas that are need of 

replacement are high traffic areas.   

 

The following quotes were presented: 

 

Jerry’s Floor Store      Cap Flooring & Painting, LLC 

Mohawk Rule Breaker Color – Nickle    Mohawk Rule Breaker Color- Nickel 

$8,297.06 + 611.91 (tax) = $8,908.97    $9,217.175 (tax included) 

 

Shaw Multiplicity Color Surplus     Shaw Multiplicity Color Surplus 

$9,202.45 + $678.68 (tax) = $9,881.13    $11,017.75 (tax included) 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff recommends the Mohawk Rule Breaker (Nickle) from Jerry’s Floor 

Store for the quoted price of $8,907.97, not to exceed $10,000.  He reported that funds will be used from the 

Building Maintenance and Renewal Account. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to when the installation would take place. Administrator Buchholtz 

stated that installation will take place as soon as possible with little disturbance to scheduled activities or use 

of the room. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired how long it has been since the carpeting was replaced. 

Administrator Buchholtz stated it was over 20 years ago. 

 

Councilmember Delfs inquired if the option of carpet squares was researched for easier replacement in the 

future if needed. Administrator Buchholtz stated that it was researched however; the replacement is a short-

term affordable fix since there could be future renovations to the building within the next 5-10 years. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE CARPET PURCHASE NOT TO EXCEED 

$10,000.00 FROM JERRY’S FLOOR STORE.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Triangle Park Gazebo 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that a gazebo for Triangle Park has been on the Park 

Improvement Plan for several years.  She stated that with the recent sidewalk and lighting improvements to 

the park, now is the time to consider placing a small gazebo on the east side of the park.  She stated that staff 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 September 4, 2018 

 

is proposing a 24 foot gazebo which can be used a gathering place and could host small bands for 

summertime music programs.  She noted that it is nearing the end of building season therefore; cement work 

would need to be done first with installation to occur in November. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that Game Time is park supplier who operates under state contract.  She reported that a 

quote has been received for 24 foot hexagon gazebo, which includes all materials, concrete and installation 

for a total of $54,211.00. She provided preliminary plans and a color chart to the Council.  She stated that the 

Parks and Recreation Committee recommends a white structure with blue roof to compliment the park and 

surrounding buildings. 

 

Ms. Rygwall stated that staff is requesting to purchase and install a 24 foot gazebo at Triangle Park from 

Game Time in the amount of $54,211.00. She stated that funds will be used from the Park Acquisition and 

Improvement Fund. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired on the size of the gazebo at Lakeside Park for comparison to the proposed 

gazebo. Mr. Randall estimated the size to be 26 feet.  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to who would be install the electrical for the gazebo. Ms. 

Rygwall stated that Aid Electrical would be the contractor as they have installed all the lighting at the park. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE PURCHASE AND 

INSTALLATION OF GAZEBO IN THE AMOUNT OF $54,211.00 AT TRIANGLE PARK. ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D.  Approval of On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License- Dala 1 Inc. – 8407 Plaza Blvd 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City of Spring Lake Park has received an on-sale intoxicating 

liquor license form Dala 1 Inc. of Fridley, Minnesota.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Dala 1 Inc. will operate the property at 8407 Plaza Boulevard as a 

restaurant/banquet facility. He stated that the restaurant, named Dala, will open on Monday through Thursday 

from 11 AM to 9 PM.  He stated that the restaurant will serve a “New Asian” menu consisting of Thai, 

Chinese and Hmong food, along with burger and fries.  He stated that the use will transition to a banquet 

facility on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays, where it will be available for rental.  He stated that the hours will 

be flexible based on the needs of the individuals renting the facility.  He reported that liquor will be available 

for sale throughout the premises. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Spring Lake Park City Code Chapter 111 establishes the 

requirements for issuance of liquor licenses.  He stated that the Spring Lake Park Police Department has 

conducted a thorough background investigation and criminal history check on the applicants. He stated that 

no issues arose during the background investigation that causes staff significant concern about the applicant. 

He stated that there was a discrepancy discovered regarding the ownership of the business, but the applicant 

to the satisfaction of the City corrected that.  He stated that staff has determined that the applicant complied 

with Section 111.17, Restrictions on Issuance, of the Spring Lake Park Code of Ordinance. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that based on the results of the background investigation and criminal history 

check, staff recommends approval of the on-sale intoxicating liquor license to Dala 1 Inc. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 September 4, 2018 

 

Administrator Buchholtz thanked Chief Ebeltoft and Police Technician Larson for their time and effort that 

was put into the background investigation process. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to how long it would take to refurbish the property and be open for 

business.  Rebecca Yang, Dala 1 Representative, stated that the period is approximately three to four months 

before the property will be ready to open and be available for banquets. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if the restaurant would be open if the banquet hall was not rented out for an 

event.  Ms. Yang stated that it would be run as a restaurant if no event was scheduled. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if there would be security staff for during the banquet rental. Ms. Yang 

stated that security would be on site and they will be working with the Police Department on training 

requirements. 

 

Building Official Brainard reminded the Council that the building has been unoccupied therefore it has lost its 

certificate of occupancy and there is no grandfathering of the establishment. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to what type of liquor licenses will be applied for.  Administrator 

Buchholtz stated that the licenses could include an on-sale liquor license, a Sunday liquor license and 

possible a 2 AM liquor license.  He explained that the applicants wanted to make sure that they were eligible 

for a liquor license before purchasing the property. He stated that the liquor license issuance can be 

contingent on securing a Certificate of Occupancy and closing on the property. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE LIQUOR LICENSE FOR 8407 PLAZA 

BOULEVARD CONTINGENT ON OBTAINING A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY AND 

COMPLETING THE PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

E.  Buchanan Street Parking Lot 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that over the past several weeks, the City has been attempting to obtain a 

quote from a contractor for the Buchanan Street Parking Lot improvements.  He stated that the City solicited 

nine contractors for quotes and were able to obtain one quote from Dave Perkins Contracting.  He stated that 

there is a very short window of availability to complete the improvements this fall, which is why staff is 

seeking authority from the City Council to award the quote. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Dave Perkins Contracting submitted a bid for $59,290.50. He stated 

that this is approximately $9,000 over the Engineer’s estimate.  He stated that the Public Works Department 

will undertake a number of tasks, including stump removal, seeding and topsoil, traffic control and fence 

salvage that has reduced the cost significantly. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff has spoken with Cory McClure, McClure Properties LLC, who 

stated that he would rather see the parking lot project completed this fall rather than waiting until the spring. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff recommends approval of the quote for the parking lot in the amount 

of $59,290.50 contingent upon the execution of a long-term parking lot lease with McClure Properties, LLC. 

He stated that the funds for the project would be taken from the HRA Excess Fund (Fund 227). He stated that 

the parking lot lease payments would be deposited into the Fund to reimburse the Fund for this expenditure. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 September 4, 2018 

 

Mayor Hansen inquired on the length of the lease. Administrator Buchholtz stated that is a 10 year lease 

however if the lease was renewed, the revenue would be utilized for economic development purposes. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired on how the parking lot would be monitored to stop other 

vehicles from parking in the lot.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that it would posted that parking is for mall 

tenants only and no overnight parking. He stated that it would be up to the owner of the mall to enforce the 

parking restriction. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired on the insurance liability for the parking lot and who would be 

responsible if there was an injury. Administrator Buchholtz stated that the mall would carry the liability 

insurance and is required to be submitted with the lease agreement to the City. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if the parking lot construction is contingent on the signing of the lease 

agreement by McClure Properties, LLC. Administrator Buchholtz stated that was correct.  

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE BUCHANAN STREET PARKING 

LOT QUOTE IN THE AMOUNT OF $59,290.50. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

10. Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

A.  Ordinance 447 Amending Zoning Ordinance Relating to Yard; Setbacks 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that due the significant number of driveway variances the City has received, 

particularly for after the fact variances, the City Council has directed staff to present a City Code amendment 

to the Planning commission.  He stated that the proposed amendment makes all driveways in place as of 

December 1, 2017 (whether legal non-conforming or illegal non-conforming) to be legal non-conforming uses. 

He stated that those driveways can be continued, through repair, replacement, restoration, maintenance or 

improvement until such time as the non-conformity or occupancy is discontinued for a period of more than one 

year or if the non-conformity is destroyed by fire or other peril by an amount greater than 50% and no building 

permit has been applied for within 180 days of when the property is damaged. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the December 1, 2017 date is used, as there is aerial photography that was 

taken in November 2017.  He stated that the aerial photography is the basis for determining the legal status of 

the driveway. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 

amendment. He stated that one resident spoke in favor of the proposed amendment, noting that it would result 

in her not needing a variance to replace her existing driveway. The Planning Commission recommended 

approval. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff expressed her opinion that she does not feel that allowing legal non-

conforming and illegal non-conforming to be legal non-conforming a good remedy to repair or fix existing 

driveways. She stated that by having good rapport with the neighbors and homeowners doing their homework 

on permit requirements there would be a less of a need for the residents to appear before the Planning 

Commission or City Council. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that with the ordinance amendment in place, residents will be able to rebuild 

existing driveways as long as there is a permit and not expansion of the driveway. He stated that the ordinance 

will require the driveway to be narrowed should it cross the property line. He stated that there will be no staff 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 September 4, 2018 

 

recommendation in the future for a zero lot line setback requests. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 447 AMENDING 

ZONING ORDINANCE RELATING TO YARD; SETBACKS. ROLL CALL VOTE: COUNCILMEMBER 

NELSON-AYE; WENDLING-AYE; DELFS-AYE; MAYOR HANSEN-AYE AND COUNCILMEMBER 

GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF-NAY. MOTION CARRIED.  

 

B.  Resolution 18-33, Adopting Proposed 2018 Taxes Collectable in 2019 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City Council, at its August 13, 2018 workshop, reviewed the 

proposed 2019 Administrator’s budget proposal.  He stated that as the preliminary levy is required to be 

submitted no later than September 30, 2018, it is necessary for the City Council to take action to set the 

preliminary levy. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that Resolution 18-33 establishes the proposed 2018, pay 2019, tax levy at 

$3,435,515.  He stated that this is an increase of 4.6% from the 2017, pay 2018, tax levy.  He reported that the 

increase is due to a number of factors including employee salary and benefits, implementation of IT mandates 

for Police Department, statutory increase in the City’s contribution to the PERA Police and Fire pension fund 

and an increase in the seasonal employee budget for the Code Enforcement Department. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the resolution sets the date of the annual Truth-in-Taxation public 

hearing for Monday, December 8, 2018 at 7:00 PM at City Hall.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the preliminary tax levy establishes the maximum tax levy for 2018, pay 

2019. He stated the final tax levy, which will be set on December 18, 2018, can be the same or lower than the 

preliminary tax levy. 

 

Councilmember Nelson thanked the staff for their hard work of working to be efficient and working within the 

limits set.  

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 18-33 ADOPTING PROPOSED 

2018 TAXES COLLECTABLE IN 2019. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Resolution 18-34 Cancelling Bond Levies 2018-2019 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that State Law requires the County Auditor to levy the amount of debt service 

originally certified unless the City passes a resolution cancelling the levy. He stated that Resolution 18-24 

would cancel four debt service levies and reduce a fifth due to the City having funds on-hand to make the debt 

service payment. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the following debt service levies would be reduced by the proposed 

resolution: 

Issue Original Proposed 

2005A GO CIP Bond (SMB Station 3) $  65,784.72 $0 

2013B GO CIP Bond (Public Works Building) $  81,000.00 $0 

2014A GO Improvement Bond (Street Projects) $ 227,000.00 $90,000 

2016A GO Capital Note (NMTV cable upgrade) $  13,202.78 $0 

2017A G Equipment Certificate (SBM Equipment) $ 248,377.50 $0 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 9 September 4, 2018 

 

He stated that the following bonds are reduced to a combination of Local Government Aid, Public Utilities 

funds, Special Assessments, Municipal State Aids funds, and General Fund budget allocations. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER DELFS TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 18-34 CANCELLING 

BOND LEVIES 2018-2019. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED.  

 

D.  Resolution 18-35 Authorizing Mayor and Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer to Execute Documents  

      Facilitating the Transfer of 525 Osborne Road NE From The North Suburban Hospital District To The City  

      Of Spring Lake Park 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 18-35 

AUTHORIZING MAYOR AND ADMINISTRATOR; CLERK/TREASURES TO EXECUTE 

DOCUMENTS FACILITATING THE TRANSFER OF 525 OSBORNE ROAD NE FROM THE NORTH 

SUBURBAN DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK. ROLL CALL VOTE: 

COUNCILMEMBERS NELSON- AYE; WENDLING-AYE; DELFS-AYE; MAYOR HANSEN- AYE; 

AND COUNCILMEMBER GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF- NAY. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

E.  Resolution 18-36 Authorizing Mayor and Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer to Execute Documents  

      Facilitating The Transfer of 8059 Highway 65 NE From the City of Spring Lake Park To McClure  

      Properties LLC 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 18-36 

AUTHORIZING MAYOR AND ADMINISTRATOR, CLERK/TREASURER TO EXECUTE 

DOCUMENTS FACILITATING THE TRANSFER TO 8059 HIGHWAY 65 NE FROM THE CITY OF 

SPRING LAKE PARK TO MCCLURE PROPERTIES LLC. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

11.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel had no new items to report outside of the Engineer’s Report that was included in the City 

Council packet. 

 

12.  Attorney’s Report  

 

Attorney Thames had no new items to report. 

 

13.  Reports  

 

A. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report  

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that there will be two additional grill nights this fall at Kraus-Hartig VFW. 

He reported that donations are up for this year compared to last year.  He welcomed anyone to volunteer with 

the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon as they are always in need of volunteers. 

 

14.  Other 

 

Mayor Hansen informed the residents that there is a discount option for low-income veterans to take advantage 

of broadband cable. She suggested that interested parties contact their cable provider. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 10 September 4, 2018 

 

Councilmember Wendling advised residents to contact the Police Department if they see suspicious people or 

activity their neighborhood. 

 

B.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that a Joint Powers Agreement has been drafted with Anoka County for the 

painting of the signal on 85th Avenue NE and Highway 65 and 81st Avenue NE and Highway 65. He stated that 

the work will occur in 2019.  He reported that a CIP has been drafted for the reconstruction on 81st Avenue  

and County Highway 10. He stated that work will occur in 2021.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Hy-Vee has started grading work on the site. He reported that he and 

City staff met with Hy-Vee representatives and discussed timelines for the project. 

 

15.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN. VOICE VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 

              

        

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 







Anoka County Contract No. C0006740 

1 

  

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT FOR THE SIGNAL PAINTING  

AT VARIOUS INTERSECTIONS IN THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MN 

(Project C.P. 17-09-00) 

 

This Agreement made and entered into this __ day of ___________, 2018, by and between the County of Anoka, 

State of Minnesota, a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, 2100 Third Avenue North, Anoka, 

Minnesota, 55303, hereinafter referred to as "County", and The City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 81st Ave NE, 

Spring Lake Park, MN 55432, hereinafter referred to as the "City". 

 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, said parties are mutually agreed that the painting of certain signals, as spelled out in Section 

I. of this agreement, within the City of Spring Lake Park should be done as soon as possible; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties to this agreement consider it mutually desirable to repaint signals; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the County shall cause the painting of the signals as part of the 2018, 

2019 and 2020 Anoka County Signal Painting Programs; and, 

WHEREAS, the Anoka County Highway Department has prepared plans and specifications for Project 

No. C.P. 17-09-00 which plans and specifications are on file in the office of the County Engineer; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that it is in their best interest that the cost of said project be the responsibility 

of the City of Spring Lake Park; and, 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute 471.59 authorizes political subdivisions of the State to enter into joint 

powers agreements for the joint exercise of powers common to each. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY STIPULATED AND AGREED: 

I. PURPOSE  

The parties have joined together for the purpose of painting the traffic signals at the intersections listed below in 

the City of Spring Lake Park, as described as per the plans and specifications C.P. 17-09-00 on file in the office 

of the Anoka County Highway Department and incorporated herein by reference: 

 2018 or 2019 

o TH 65 at 85th Ave 

 2020 

o TH 65 at 81st Ave 

  



Anoka County Contract No. C0006740 

2 

II. METHOD 

The County shall provide all engineering services and shall cause the construction of Anoka County Project No. 

C.P.  17-09-00  in conformance with said plans and specifications.  The County shall do the calling for all bids 

and the acceptance of all bid proposals. 

III. COSTS 

The contract costs of the work, or if the work is not contracted, the cost of all labor, materials, normal engineering 

costs and equipment rental required to complete the work, shall constitute the actual "construction costs" and shall 

be so referred to herein.  “Estimated costs” are good faith projections of the costs, which will be incurred for this 

project.  Actual costs may vary and those will be the costs for which the relevant parties will be responsible.  The 

estimated construction cost of the total project (including County furnished materials) is $20,000.00. Participation 

in the construction cost is as follows: 

The City shall pay for one hundred percent (100%) of the actual signal painting, at an estimated cost of 

$10,000.00/signal system (intersection).  The grand total estimated cost to the City for the project is $20,000.00.   

 Upon award of the contract, the City shall pay to the County, upon written demand by the County, 

ninety five percent (95%) of its portion of the cost of the project estimated at $18,000.00/program year.  The 

City’s share of the cost of the project shall include only construction and construction engineering expense and 

does not include administrative expenses incurred by the County. 

Upon final completion of the project, the City’s share of the construction cost will be based upon actual 

construction costs.  If necessary, adjustments to the initial ninety five percent (95%) charged will be made in the 

form of credit or additional charges to the City’s share.  Also, the remaining five percent (5%) of the City’s portion 

of the construction costs shall be paid.  

IV. TERM 

This Agreement shall continue until terminated as provided hereinafter. 

V. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

All funds disbursed by the County or City pursuant to this Agreement shall be disbursed by each entity pursuant 

to the method provided by law. 

VI. CONTRACTS AND PURCHASES 

All contracts let and purchases made pursuant to this Agreement shall be made by the County in conformance to 

the State laws. 

VII. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY 

A strict accounting shall be made of all funds and report of all receipts and disbursements shall be made upon 

request by either party. 

VIII. TERMINATION 



Anoka County Contract No. C0006740 

3 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time, with or without cause, upon not less than thirty 

(30) days written notice delivered by mail or in person to the other party.  If notice is delivered by mail, it shall be 

deemed to be received two (2) days after mailing.  Such termination shall not be effective with respect to any 

solicitation of bids or any purchases of services or goods, which occurred prior to such notice of termination.  The 

City shall pay its pro rata share of costs, which the County incurred prior to such notice of termination. 

IX. NOTICE 

For purposes of delivery of any notices hereunder, the notice shall be effective if delivered to the County 

Administrator of Anoka County 2100 Third Avenue North, Anoka, Minnesota 55303, on behalf of the County, 

and The City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 81st Ave NE, Spring Lake Park, MN 55432, on behalf of the City. 

X. INDEMNIFICATION 

The City and the County mutually agree to indemnify and hold harmless each other from any claims, losses, costs, 

expenses or damages resulting from the acts or omissions of the respective officers, agents, or employees relating 

to activities conducted by either party under this Agreement. 

XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT REQUIREMENT OF A WRITING 

It is understood and agreed that the entire agreement of the parties is contained herein and that this Agreement 

supersedes all oral agreements and all negotiations between the parties relating to the subject matter thereof, as 

well as any previous agreement presently in effect between the parties to the subject matter thereof.  Any 

alterations, variations, or modifications of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have 

been reduced to writing and duly signed by the parties. 

XII. COUNTERPARTS 

 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each one of which shall be deemed to 

be an original, but all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

  



Anoka County Contract No. C0006740 

4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties of this Agreement have hereunto set their hands on the dates written below: 

 

COUNTY OF ANOKA    CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK  

   

 

 

By:       By:       

 Jerry Soma      Cindy Hansen 

 County Administrator     Mayor 

  

Dated:       Dated:       

 

 

 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

 

By:       By: 

Douglas W. Fischer, P.E.    Daniel Buchholtz, 

 County Engineer     City Administrator 

 

Dated:       Dated:       

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND EXECUTION: 

 

 

By:       By: 

 Dan Klint      John Thames, 

 Assistant County Attorney    City Attorney 

 

Dated:       Dated: 

 

 







 

 

Police Report 

August 2018 

Submitted for Council Meeting September 17, 2018 

 

The Spring Lake Park Police Department responded to five hundred and thirty-six calls for service for the 

month of August 2018. This is compared to responding to five hundred and eighty- two calls for service 

for August 2017. 

Investigator Baker reports handling a case load of fifty-four cases for the month of August 2018. Forty-

six of these cases were felony in nature, five were gross-misdemeanor in nature and three were 

misdemeanor in nature. Investigator Baker noted that some of the cases that he investigated this month 

included but were not limited to Domestic Assaults, 1st, 3rd and 4th degree burglaries, terroristic threats 

and a motor vehicle theft case. Several of these case have been submitted and charged out by the City 

Attorney’s Office and the County Attorney’s Office. For further details, see Investigator Bakers attached 

report.  

The Spring Lake Park Police Department Administrative Office Staff continue to remain steadfast in their 

duties, typing and imaging reports, filing, answering and dispensing phone calls for service and 

information, while continuing to address citizen concerns at our “Police Public Walk up- Window”, along 

with other duties that may be assigned on a daily basis. The administrative office staff are also diligently 

working on projects regarding records retention issues, suspense issues regarding federal and state 

mandates bringing the police department closer to a current status and remaining in compliance.  

The month of August 2018 has been a busy month for myself as well, besides handling the day to day 

operations of the police department. I continue to attend meetings on a daily basis representing the City 

of Spring Lake Park and the Police Department, some of these meetings include but are not limited to 

the monthly City Council Meetings held here in Spring Lake Park, Nite to Unite block parties, a meeting 

with the National Child Safety Council Representative Gordy Pietruszewski to kick off the upcoming fund 

raising event for the National Child Safety Council and the City of Spring Lake Park Police Department, a 

City Council Budget Workshop for the 2019 Proposed Budget, a quarterly Spring Lake Park Police 

Department Administrative and entire Police Department staff meeting, a meeting with George Jenson 



of the Public Safety Data System to discuss statistical reporting options for our Public Safety Data System 

and the Spring Lake Park Police Department and I concluded the month by holding a meeting with 

Colleen Pederson of the Spring Lake Park Independent School District, Director Randall and myself in 

preparation for the upcoming Spring Lake Park Panther 5k/2k Run/walk event scheduled for September 

29, 2018. Ms. Pederson did appear and talk to the Mayor and City Council regarding this upcoming event 

at our September 4, 2018 council meeting.  

This will conclude my report for August 2018. 

Are there any questions? 

 

   

 



Spring Lake Park Police Department 
Investigations Monthly Report 

 

 
Investigator 

Brad Baker 

 

August 2018 
 

Total Case Load 
 

Case Load by Level of Offense: 54 
 

Felony    46 

Gross Misdemeanor  5 

Misdemeanor   3 

 

Case Dispositions: 
 

County Attorney    8 

Juvenile County Attorney  0 

City Attorney    2 

Forward to Other Agency  0 

SLP Liaison    0 

Carried Over    39 

Unfounded     0 

Exceptionally Cleared   0 

Closed/Inactive    5 

 

                  Forfeitures: 
Active Forfeitures   1 

Forfeitures Closed   0 

 

Notes:        





 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  September 11, 2018 

Subject: Parking Lot Lease – Buchanan Street 
 
Included with this memorandum is the Parking Lot Lease between the City of Spring Lake Park and 
McClure Properties LLC.  The Lease is for 10 years at an annual lease rate of $650.00 per month. 
 
The lease calls for the City to maintain the parking lot over the term of the lease, including routine 
maintenance, snow removal and grass mowing.  McClure Properties LLC will carry insurance on the 
parking lot and will indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless from and against any and all claims 
associated with the use of the parking lot.  In addition, the costs of repair of any extraordinary damage 
to the parking lot caused as a result of the McClure Properties LLC’s use of the property shall be the 
responsibility of McClure Properties LLC.   
 
If McClure Properties LLC violates the lease and does not cure the default within the 30 day period, 
the City is able to collect all remaining rent outstanding and all rent scheduled to be due during the 
remainder of the term of the lease.  If the invoice is not paid, the City may assess the tenant’s property.  
This provision provides the City with a security that its investment in the parking lot will be recouped. 
 
The City will install signs restricting parking in the parking lot to those working or visiting the strip 
mall and limiting parking hours to 6am to 10pm.  Enforcement of those parking restrictions is the 
responsibility of McClure Properties LLC. 
 
The following is a budget for the parking lot project: 
 
Revenue      Expense 
Lease Revenue   $78,000.00  Construction (Perkins)  $58,281.00 
       Construction (City)  $  2,500.00 
       Engineering (est)  $  3,969.00 
       Legal (est)   $  1,000.00 
       Signage    $     750.00 
       Fence    $  2,500.00 
    _________  City Maintenance  $  9,000.00 
TOTAL   $78,000.00      $78,000.00 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Parking Lot Lease.  If you have any questions, please don’t 
hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





























 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  September 12, 2018 

Subject: Public Storage Building Permit 
 
On April 2, 2018, the City Council granted conditional site plan approval to Public Storage for 
the construction of a 3-story climate controlled storage facility on their property at 7807 Highway 
65 NE.  One of the conditions of site plan approval was for Public Storage to submit a formal plat 
for the property.  We received a call from Public Storage informing us that they will not be able to 
record the plat in a timeframe that would allow them to begin construction this Fall.  They have 
asked us for some flexibility in this requirement. 
 
To accommodate this request, staff has developed the attached Agreement for Conditional 
Approval of Building Permit.  Under this agreement, staff would be able to grant the building 
permit.  If Public Storage does not file the plat within 180 days, the City has the right to withhold 
the “Certificate of Occupancy” for the property, meaning the property owner cannot use the 
property until the plat is filed.  Public Storage can request one 90 day extension of this 
requirement, but the City has sole discretion on whether to grant the extension. 
 
Staff believes that this is a reasonable accommodation to keep the project on track while protecting 
the City’s interests.  Staff recommends approval of the agreement. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 

1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF BUILDING PERMIT 

  

 This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between PS LPT Properties Investors, 

a Maryland real estate investment trust, on behalf of itself and Secure Mini Storage Limited 

Partnership, a Minnesota limited partnership (collectively “Public Storage”) and the City of 

Spring Lake Park, a Minnesota Municipal corporation (“City”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Public Storage is the owner of the property located at 7807 Highway 65 NE, 

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, legally described as: 

 

The South 455.0 feet of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 124, Anoka County, 

Minnesota, lying East of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 65 

and lying West of the East 480.0 feet, and excepting therefrom the South 320.0 

feet of the West 295.0 feet of said Lot 7, subject to easement of record 

 

(the “Subject Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2018, via Resolution 18-10, the City conditionally approved Public 

Storage’s site plan application for the construction of a new indoor climate-controlled storage 

facility on the Subject Property; and  

 

WHEREAS, one of the conditions of that approval required Public Storage to submit a formal 

plat for the Subject Property, as a part of the development; and  

 

WHEREAS, on July 2, 2018, via Resolution 18-21, the City approved Public Storage’s 

application for preliminary and final plat approval of Public Storage SLP First Addition on the 

Subject Property, subject to several conditions; and   

 

WHEREAS, Public Storage has not yet recorded the final plat for the Subject Property as it has 

become aware of a mortgage of record on the Subject Property and must secure mortgagee 

consent to the recording or satisfy the mortgage, a process that Public Storage believes will take 

several months; and  

 

WHEREAS, Public Storage desires to commence construction of the new facility during the fall 

of 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the City’s policy to require final plat recording prior to review and issuance of 

a building permit to ensure satisfaction of this requirement; and 

 

WHEREAS, if all other requirements of a building permit are satisfied, the City is willing to 

conditionally approve a building permit for the Subject Property prior to the recording of the 

final plat, subject to the additional permit condition that the final plat for the Subject Property be 



 

2 

recorded with Anoka County and proof of the same furnished to the City within six months of 

the City’s execution of this Agreement and conditioned upon Public Storage’s acknowledgement 

and agreement that the conditions of the building permit shall not be deemed to have been 

satisfied and no certificate of occupancy shall be issued unless and until the final plat for the 

Subject Property is recorded and proof of the same provided to the City and all other 

requirements of the permit and certificate are met; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City would not be willing to issue a building permit to Public Storage prior to 

recording of the final plat on the Subject Property, absent the mutual execution of this 

Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Public Storage is willing to reimburse the City for all reasonable costs incurred by 

the City in preparing and approving this Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. The City agrees to issue a building permit to Public Storage for construction on 

the Subject Property, in compliance with the previously approved site plan, prior 

to the recording of the final plat on the Subject Property, on the following 

conditions: 

 

1) Public Storage shall record the final plat on the Subject Property and provide 

proof of the same to the City within 180 days of the City’s execution of this 

Agreement, however, this deadline may be extended by up to 90 additional 

days, in the City’s sole discretion, upon a written request from Public Storage; 

and 

2) Public Storage complies with and fully satisfies all other requirements of the 

applicable building permit, the previously approved site plan, and the City’s 

conditions of final plat approval; and  

3) Public Storage complies with all other terms of this Agreement. 

 

2. Public Storage acknowledges and agrees that the conditions of the building permit 

contemplated in paragraph 1 shall not be deemed to have been satisfied, and no 

certificate of occupancy shall be issued, unless and until the final plat for the 

Subject Property is recorded and proof of the same provided to the City and all 

other requirements of the permit and certificate are met.  Public Storage 

specifically acknowledges the City’s authority to withhold a certificate of 

occupancy until these conditions are satisfied and specifically waives any right to 

challenge a City decision not to issue a certificate of occupancy based on Public’s 

Storage’s failure to record the final plat for the Subject Property, as required 

herein.  

 

3. Public Storage shall post an escrow with the City in the amount of $1,000.00 to 

cover the City’s costs in preparing and approving this Agreement.  From this 



 

3 

escrow, the City shall reimburse itself for any such costs incurred and thereafter 

return the balance to Public Storage. 

 

4. The above recitals are made a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth in this 

section. 

 

5. Public Storage agrees to pay all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, 

incurred by the City in the enforcement of the terms of this Agreement. 

 

6. The undersigned signatories each represent and warrant that they are authorized to 

execute this Agreement and bind their respective entities to the terms of this 

Agreement.  The signatory below for PS LPT Properties Investors specifically 

represents and warrants that he/she is fully authorized to bind Public Storage to all 

terms of this Agreement.  

 

7. Public Storage and the City agree that any action to enforce the terms of this 

Agreement shall be brought in Anoka County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY OWNER, ON BEHALF OF 

PUBLIC STORAGE  

 

PS LPT Properties Investors,    CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK,  

 

A Maryland real estate investment trust   A Minnesota municipal corporation 

     

 

 

 

 

BY:_________________________________ ____________________________________ 

 

PRINT: _____________________________  Daniel Buchholtz 

 

ITS: General Partner     City Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

Date:________________________   Date:________________________ 

 

 

      



 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 9.17.18 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 
Annual Report and Annual Public Meeting completed in June.  Annual Training will be completed this fall.      

 
Local Surface Water Management Plan (LSWMP) (193803949). 
A summary report was presented on September 10th.  The LSWMP will be updated based on comments 
received from the various review agencies.     

 
2018 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193804547). 
This project includes sewer lining in the northeast area of the city.  Initial sewer cleaning and 
televising work has been completed.  Lining work will begin in October.                                  

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 
The 2018 work has been substantially completed.  Waiting for billing quantity information from Contractor.     

 
Wells 4 and 5 (193804554): Contractor is Keys Well Drilling.  Preconstruction Conference was held on 

Sept. 17th.  The construction schedule calls for autumn work on Well 4 and early winter work on Well 5.     

 
Wellhead Protection Plan: A Plan Evaluation Report was provided to the Minnesota Department of 
Health (MDH). MDH approved a 10-year extension to the Plan on July 26, 2018.  

 
Buchanan Street Parking Lot:  Staff is working on the idea of possibly construction a small parking lot on 
the city owned lot on Buchanan Street south of 81st Avenue.  Quote from Dave Perkins Contracting was 
approved on September 4th.  Work has started.  Paving should be completed by October 1st.    

 
Bituminous Trail Maintenance (Osborne Rd. and Central Avenue):  The public works staff has 
prepared the trails and swept them.  The slurry seal work will begin this week.    
 
 
Other issues/projects.    
 
Dominium Project.  A new site walkthrough inspection will be completed this month the review 
remaining site improvement work including street patching.   

 
Hy-Vee Project.  Site grading plan has been reviewed and approved by public works/engineering.  
Site utility plans still need to be approved prior to starting any site utility work.       

 
Public Storage Project.  Plat has been approved.  Developer is in the process of obtaining site a 
permit from the Rice Creek Watershed District.         
 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Marc Janovec, Peter Allen, or me if you have any questions or 
require any additional information.   





 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 







































 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, completed four projects in August, including Blue Heron 
Days projects, Night to Unite, and two local garden stories.  Programs were also produced by Ben 
Hayle, Danika Peterson, T.J. Tronson, and Jeremy Millington.  Trevor reaches out to City 
officials and department contacts, every month, regarding potential programming for the 
channels.  City staff and elected officials are encouraged to contact Trevor with any ideas or 
requests for programming. 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 

August 2018  CCIITTYY  REPORT  
blaine centerville circle pines ham lake lexington lino lakes spring lake park

▪ August Completed Videos/Playing on City Channels & Internet 

Video Production 

Blue Heron Days Preview Trevor Scholl 00:04:00 

Night to Unite Trevor Scholl 00:03:26 

Waldoch Farm Garden Tours Trevor Scholl 00:03:17 

Blaine Community Gardens Trevor Scholl 00:06:15 

Minnesota Soda Festival at Blue Sun Soda 
Shop 

Danika Peterson 00:04:50 

Centennial Library Closes for Remodel Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:03:47 

Lexington Redevelopment Project Ben Hayle 00:02:58 

Blue Heron Days Parade Kenton Kipp/Jeremy 
Millington 

00:51:52 

Blue Heron Days Parade From the Inside T.J. Tronson 00:02:50 

Anoka County Board Meeting (8/14/18) T.J. Tronson 00:23:18 

Anoka County Board Meeting ( 8/28/18) T.J. Tronson 00:19:34 
 

 
Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include: 
 
 Ham Lake senior dance day 
 Talking with Centennial Police regarding several videos 
 Business profile on Urban Air Adventure Park 
 Scheduling more Mayor's Minutes 
 Circle Pines City promo 
 Lino Lakes organics recycling 
 Open to Business, each Cities involvement 
 Arranging interviews with each City's economic developer about Open to 

Business 
 
 



 
  
 
 
 

 Blaine 
 No equipment consulting was necessary. 
 Centerville  
 8/31/18: Audio not displaying on the left channel. Fixed the problem in th Adui9o 

Processor Card in dashboard by duplicating channel 1 audio onto channel 2 so 
viewers at home can at least hear the audio out of their right speaker. Notified 
Tightrope as this is a temporary fix.  

 Circle Pines  
 8/28/18: Talked with Z Systems regarding upgrade. Should happen the last week 

of October.  
 8/31/18: Low channel audio. Restarted the Carousel that was causing the low 

audio. Still a little low, so boosted it using the Audio Processor Card in 
dashboard. Boosted the levels by +12db and it sounds much better.  

 Ham Lake  
 No equipment consulting was necessary. 

 Lexington  
 No equipment consulting was necessary. 

 Lino Lakes  
 8/1/18: Rusty Ray emailed with questions about the set-up and signal 

transmission. Michele went over the signal path and they performed a test to 
verify everything was tested, working, and understood.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 No equipment consulting was necessary. 

 All Cities  
 8/6/18: Due to the loss of internet the Makito X devices stopped transmitting 

feeds from Cities.  All feeds returned to normal.  
 8/13/18: All City Carousel units went down.  Restarted all of them. Called 

Tightrope to report.  
 8/20/18: After Tightrope repaired the Carousels they required data updating. Ran 

the update scripts, shutting off the automatic updates that interfere with the 
broadcast on TV. Went in and reset all the display adapters to get them all to 
match and appropriately air on the channels.  

 8/28/18:  Restart Carousels. File naming structures may be problematic. Tightrope 
recommends not using any special characters when naming files.  Files are being 
renamed with no special characters.  

 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
Programming Coordinator, Michele Silvester, along with help from Eric Houston, Tarkor 
Zehn, and Trevor Scholl, is responsible for processing and scheduling the programming 
on the City channels.  There are three categories of programs that are scheduled on the 
City channels; live and replayed meetings, NMTV staff created video content, and 
informational graphics pages.  All categories of programming must be encoded, 
scheduled, and entered into the Tightrope playback system or entered into the Carousel 
video files.   

Equipment Consulting/Technical Support 

Master Control 



As each live meeting is being recorded at City Hall, it is routed to the North Metro TV 
head-end and then sent out over the cable system live. At the same time it is also encoded 
on a server for future playbacks.  The following meetings were processed in August: 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Blaine City Council Meeting (8/2/18) Blaine Staff 01:33:38 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/15/18) 

Blaine Staff 01:06:57 

Blaine City Council Meeting (8/16/18) Blaine Staff 01:28:13 

Blaine Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Meeting (8/21/18) 

Blaine Staff 00:21:053 

Blaine Park Board Meeting (8/28/18) Blaine Staff 00:51:28 

Centerville City Council Meeting (8/8/18) Centerville Staff 01:35:04 

Centerville City Council Meeting (8/22/18) Centerville Staff 01:02:47 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting (8/15/18) Circle Pines Staff 00:24:10 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(8/15/18) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:55:43 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting (8/28/18) Circle Pines Staff 00:05:47 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (8/6/18) Ham Lake Staff 01:00:36 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/13/18) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:33:05 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (8/20/18) Ham Lake Staff 00:38:15 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/27/18) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:30:00 

Lexington City Council Meeting (8/2/18) Lexington Staff 01:18:14 

Lexington City Council Meeting (8/16/18) Lexington Staff 00:38:08 

Lino Lakes Environmental Board Meeting 
(8/1/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 01:14:14 

Lino Lakes Planning & Zoning Meeting 
(8/8/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 01:26:13 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (8/13/18) Lino Lakes Staff 00:16:05 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (8/27/18) Lino Lakes Staff 00:22:42 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(8/6/18) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

02:14:15 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(8/20/18) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

00:48:44 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission 
Meeting (8/27/18) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

00:34:05 

23 New Programs  21:00:16  New 
Hours 

 
 
Meetings are scheduled for replay based on schedules requested by each City. Additional 
longer-length video programming  produced by NMTV staff is also scheduled on the 
channels.  With the arrival of the Carousel units, shorter-length videos and promos are 
loaded onto those devices, rather than being scheduled as separate playbacks.  The short 



videos cycle through, with graphics pages, and play on the channels whenever a 
scheduled program is not playing.  Depending on whether a City selected the split screen 
or full screen Carousel option, the shorter videos are cycling 24 hours a day.  The table 
below outlines how many times a longer-length video program was entered into the 
Tightrope system, and played back on each City channel.   
 
 

City Number of Times 
Programs Played 

Hours Programmed 
on Channel 

Blaine  232 249:30:20 

Centerville 52 56:41:30 

Circle Pines 151 69:28:53 

Ham Lake 107 98:43:00 

Lexington 103 94:12:30 

Lino Lakes 103 80:36:18 

Spring Lake Park 161 190:43:08 

Totals: 988 Program Playbacks 623:42:42 Hours of Video 
Programming on 

Channels 

 
 
The last category of programming on City channels consists of bulletin board, or graphics 
pages, that display information about the City or about events and issues of interest to 
citizens.  With the installation of the new Carousel units complete, Eric Houston has 
assumed responsibility for updating the information on all seven channels.  He works 
closely with each City's representative to ensure that all requested data slides are created 
and posted to the satisfaction of the City.  Even though Eric is doing the work of creating 
the data pages, the Cities will always maintain editorial control.  In addition to the 
graphics pages, the new Carousel units play video.  Trevor Scholl is responsible for 
encoding any videos that will be displayed. The following work was done for City 
Carousel units in August: 
 

 Blaine 
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  

 Centerville  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  

 Circle Pines  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  
 Put all August meetings on hard drive for City 
 Captured meeting from VHS tape and edited out duration of a closed session 

before re-uploading the corrected video 
 Ham Lake  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  

 Lexington  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  

 Lino Lakes  
 Transcoded and uploaded 4 videos to Carousel.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel.  
 Created 2 bulletins for Carousel. 
 Removed 2016-2017 meetings from VOD 

 



 

City Channel Signal Monitoring 
 

 Blaine  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Centerville  
 Noted audio problems with channel 2. Made temporary fix. Checking with 

Tightrope for permanent fix.  
 Circle Pines  
 Low channel audio. Carousel issue.  Working with Tightrope on permanent fix.  

 Ham Lake  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Lexington  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Lino Lakes  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Spring Lake Park  
 No channel signal problems. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
NMTV has created a video on demand service, with line-item bookmarking, for our 
Cities meetings.  In order to accomplish this, each encoded meeting has to undergo 
several steps.  The meeting must first be transferred and transcoded from the playback 
server to the video on demand server.  The length of time necessary for this varies based 
on the length of the meeting and whether it is recorded in SD or HD.  Once that is done, a 
staff member must go through the meeting entering a bookmark at the start of each 
meeting line-item, and type in the corresponding line-item information.  Staff utilizes 
marked agendas provided by City staff members for this step.  If marked agendas aren't 
provided by City staff we go to the City website to find unmarked agendas and place the 
meeting on VOD without bookmarks.  Once that is done and saved the bookmarked 
meeting is then linked to the NMTV website's city meeting page for video on demand. 
The following number of meetings were bookmarked and/or placed on VOD for the 
Cities in August: 
 
 Blaine 
 5 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Centerville  
 2 meeting placed on VOD. 

 Circle Pines  
 3 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Ham Lake  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Lexington  
 2 meetings placed on VOD. 

 Lino Lakes  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 3 meeting bookmarked and placed on VOD 

Meetings on Demand  
 



 
 
 

 
  
 
 
The issues dealt with in August include finalizing the municipal drone policy and 
procedures for employees and the draft ordinance for Cities, considering CenturyLink 
franchise compliance issues, and keeping up with "exciting" small cell wireless 
deployment developments.     

  
 Drone Policies and Procedures  
 Received final drone policies and procedures. 
 Reviewed policies and reporting procedures with NMTV drone operator. 
 Asked Legal Counsel questions regarding policies.  

 
 CenturyLink Franchise Compliance Issues   
 Reviewed memo prepared by Legal Counsel outlining probable CenturyLink 

franchise violations due to the decision to stop promoting the Prism TV product. 
 Spoke with Legal Counsel regarding next steps. 
 Will include recommendation to issue Notice of Franchise Violation in the 

September meeting packets.  
 
 Small Cell Wireless Deployment   
 Reviewed FCC Declaratory Ruling to Preempt Moratoria on Telecommunications 

Applications and rules regarding small cell infrastructure deployment. 
 Received questions from Commission Member Dale Stoesz regarding local 

impacts of rulings.  Spoke with Legal Counsel regarding same and supplied 
answer.  Because of recent MN legislation regarding small cell deployment there 
should be little or no new  impact from the FCC rulings on Member Cities. 

 Investigated whether any Member City has had a permit request for small cell 
infrastructure installation.  None have. 

 Forwarded information to Legal Counsel to use as evidence in a letter to the FCC 
to show that preemption of local government is proving ineffective to spur the 
rollout of 5G in our communities.  

 Reviewed and approved draft letter to the FCC. 
 
 Miscellaneous  
 Spoke with Dale Stoesz regarding Woodbury government programming and how 

the City obtains its video.  Did some research to find the answers. Also gave a 
tour of NMTV to the operations manager of the Southwest Counties Cable 
Commission of which Woodbury is a part.  Turns out she lives in Circle Pines. 

 Mediated a Blaine subscriber complaint with Comcast regarding equipment 
failure, customer service, and billing.  Issues resolved.  

 Coordinated staff participation in the Lino Lakes Blue Heron Days parade.  
 Spoke with Clark Arneson regarding Ben Hayle.  
 Read industry articles.  
 

 

Administrative 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 2018  Update 
North Metro TV
 

 
 
          
  

Program Production 

In August, a total of 92 new programs were produced utilizing the 
North Metro facilities, funds, and services.  This constitutes 65:00:00 
hours of new programming.    
 

 37 programs were produced by the public  

 32 programs were produced by NMTV staff 

 22 programs were produced by City staff 
 
 
 
 
 
  Van Shoots 
  
The HD truck was used for 11:45:00 hours of production. Events 
produced live and recorded for additional playbacks include: 
 

 Lino Lakes Blue Heron Days Parade 

 Football:  Irondale vs. Spring Lake Park 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Workshops 
 

Workshop Instructor Organization Students 

Editing Eric Houston General Public 13 

Camera Eric Houston General Public 1 

Camera Eric Houston General Public 2 

Gilligan's Island Lecture Eric Houston Edgewood Senior Living 13 

Early Film Treasures 
Lecture 

Eric Houston Anoka County History 
Center 

12 

Studio Eric Houston General Public 3 

Camera Eric Houston General Public 2 

James Bond Lecture Eric Houston Edgewood Senior Living 17 

Intro to NMTV Eric Houston General Public 1 

Movie Night - The 
Magnificent Ambersons 

Eric Houston Video Club 7 

10 Workshops   71 Students 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
  Home Movie Transfers 
 
Home movie transfers have become one of our most popular services.  Residents can transfer 
their family videos themselves for free, or pay NMTV to do it.  NMTV can also transfer film, slides, 
and photos for a fee.    
 

Month Hours 
Transferred 

Tapes Film 
Reels 

DVDs Photos/
Slides 

Fees Paid 

January 201.75 57 122 20 409 $1,159.00 

February 120.5 41 53 15 1,164 $780.00 

March 167.5 64 0 74 237 $381.00 

April 128.00 52 53 17 781 $195.00 

May 59.00 29 18 9 0 $460.00 

June 133.75 45 36 31 475 $354.00 

July 166.5 27 54 28 230 $200.00 

August 224.5 64 11 62 649 $1,157.00 

TOTAL: 1,073.50 379 347 256 3,945 $4,686.00 

 
 
 
  
 
Public Usage Stats 

For statistical purposes, the public access department documents total numbers of unique 
individuals and total hours of usage of the facility by the general public, every month.  These 
numbers include regular users, class participants, individuals transferring videos, people who 
attend events, and any other public usage of the facility.  The numbers do not take into account 
the many members of the public who work with any other NMTV department, such as news, 
sports, municipal, or educational.    
 

Month Unique Individuals Total Usage Hours 

January 111 460 

February 112 685.25 

March 117 552.25 

April 47 295.5 

May 103 409.25 

June 116 556.75 

July 101 513.25 

August 106 612.75 

TOTAL PUBLIC USAGE:  4,085.00 

 
 
 
  Production Highlights 
 

NMTV News Highlights 
Each week Danika Peterson and Ben 
Hayle create a news program that 
highlights events, people, issues, and 
information important to citizens of our 
Member Cities.  Some August highlights 
include:  

 Battle of the Badges Blood Drive 
 Freezing Away the Pain 
 Night to Unite  
 Perry Wins Last 3M 

Championship 
 Blue Heron Days 
 Blaine is Ready for Voters 
 Celebrating the Last 3M Championship 
 Major Development Project in Lexington 
 105th Avenue Construction Complete 



 
In addition to daily playbacks of North Metro TV News on the cable systems, there are over 515 
local stories archived for viewers on the NMTV YouTube page.  The page can be accessed 
through the northmetrotv.com website. 
     

Farewell to Ben 
NMTV News Producer, Ben Hayle, will be leaving his job after 13 years of 
employment.  He was recently hired as the Communications Coordinator for the 
City of Blaine.  This is a newly created position at the City.  While we are all happy 
for the excellent opportunity for Ben, he will be sorely missed.  The one bright side 
is that, as the Communications Coordinator for Blaine, we will still get to work with 
him often.  The search for his replacement has begun.  Resumes are due in mid-
September and we hope to have someone on board by early October.  
Unfortunately this will impact our usual election related coverage.  We will do as 
much as we can, but Ben's political knowledge and on-camera moderating was an 
integral part of our program.   
 

Drone Service Gears Up 
Special Events Coordinator and 
Commercial Drone Operator, T.J. 
Tronson had some time this month to 
create some publicity videos for the 
NMTV drone service.   Two promos 
with service and contact information 
were linked to NMTV website, played 
on the channels, and are also posted 
to the NMTV YouTube and FaceBook 
pages.  The promos highlight the 
various flights T.J. has recorded and 
list the services we can provide.  As a 
reminder, all of the commercial 
services we provide are available to the Member Cities at no cost. Lino Lakes took advantage of 
this service in August with a request for aerial shots of the City for their website.  Cable 
Commission Legal Counsel recently completed Drone Usage Policies for staff and we are 
incorporating the policies and reporting requirements into our services.   
  

Lectures On Location 
It was another big month for our on-location lecture series.  
Instructor, Eric Houston, presented his Gilligan's Island: 
Behind the Scenes of the Three Hour Tour and James Bond: 
50 Years of 007, at Edgewood Senior Living.  The residents 
seem to enjoy the classes and Eric has been asked to return 
for two more classes next month.  He also presented his 
Early Film Treasures: 1888-1896 lecture at the Anoka County 
History Center.  They were also pleased with the presentation 
and have asked Eric back to present a class in December.   
He is now putting together two new lectures.  The first is 
called Movie Dictionary, which will present definitions of 
movie terms, like gaffer, along with fun clips, and a class 
focusing on monster moview that he hopes to have ready for 
the Halloween season.  

 

Blue Heron Days Celebration 
North Metro TV wrapped up its summer 
festival season with coverage of the LIno 
Lakes Blue Heron Days events.  
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl 
created a short video previewing the 
event, the News Department produced a 
story on the event, the Sports 
Department recorded the parade with the 
HD production truck, staff and volunteers 
marched in the parade, and Special 



Events Coordinator, T.J. Tronson put together a video highlighting the Lino Lakes folks who came 
out to watch the parade.  
 

Return of High School Sports 
The end of August means the beginning of a 
new season of high school sports.  The 
Sports team jumped right in with the 
production of 10 episodes of Coaches & 
Captains, which highlights coaches, players 
and team objectives for the new school year. 
Three games, including soccer and football, 
were covered live and recorded for additional 
playbacks.  Sports Den, the weekly sports 
highlight show also started its new season 
with two episodes in August.  This year the 
Sports Department is also producing a short 
video highlight of every game they produce.  Those highlights are available on the NMTV 
YouTube page. 
 

City Productions 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, 
completed four projects in August including 
Lino Lakes Blue Heron Days coverage.  
Projects completed include: 

 Blue Heron Days Preview 
 Night to Unite 
 Waldoch Farm Garden Tours 
 Blaine Community Gardens 
 

New and ongoing projects include: 
 Ham Lake senior dance day 
 Talking with Centennial Police 

regarding several videos 
 Business profile on Urban Air Adventure Park 
 Scheduling more Mayor's Minutes 
 Circle Pines City promo 
 Lino Lakes organics recycling 
 Open to Business, each Cities involvement 
 Arranging interviews with each City's economic developer about Open to Business 

 
Trevor touches base with contacts on a regular basis and also encourages Cities to contact him 
whenever they have an idea for a new show.    
 

Production equipment consulting for cities and schools  
 Blaine 

 No equipment consulting was necessary. 
 Centerville  

 8/31/18: Audio not displaying on the left channel. Fixed the problem in th Adui9o 
Processor Card in dashboard by duplicating channel 1 audio onto channel 2 so viewers at 
home can at least hear the audio out of their right speaker. Notified Tightrope as this is a 
temporary fix.  

 Circle Pines  

 8/28/18: Talked with Z Systems regarding upgrade. Should happen the last week of 
October.  

 8/31/18: Low channel audio. Restarted the Carousel that was causing the low audio. Still 
a little low, so boosted it using the Audio Processor Card in dashboard. Boosted the levels 
by +12db and it sounds much better.  

 Ham Lake  

 No equipment consulting was necessary. 
 Lexington  

 No equipment consulting was necessary. 
 Lino Lakes  



 8/1/18: Rusty Ray emailed with questions about the set-up and signal transmission. 
Michele went over the signal path and they performed a test to verify everything was 
tested, working, and understood.  

 Spring Lake Park  

 No equipment consulting was necessary. 
 All Cities  

 8/6/18: Due to the loss of internet the Makito X devices stopped transmitting feeds from 
Cities.  All feeds returned to normal.  

 8/13/18: All City Carousel units went down.  Restarted all of them. Called Tightrope to 
report.  

 8/20/18: After Tightrope repaired the Carousels they required data updating. Ran the 
update scripts, shutting off the automatic updates that interfere with the broadcast on 
TV. Went in and reset all the display adapters to get them all to match and appropriately 
air on the channels.  

 8/28/18:  Restart Carousels. File naming structures may be problematic. Tightrope 
recommends not using any special characters when naming files.  Files are being 
renamed with no special characters.  

 
 

City Channel 16 Playback Stats 
 

City Number of Times Programs Played Hours Programmed on 
Channel 

Blaine  232 249:30:20 

Centerville 52 56:41:30 

Circle Pines 151 69:28:53 

Ham Lake 107 98:43:00 

Lexington 103 94:12:30 

Lino Lakes 103 80:36:18 

Spring Lake Park 161 190:43:08 

Totals: 988 Program Playbacks 623:42:42 Hours of Video 
Programming on Channels 

 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by the Public 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Black and White or Gray (2 episodes) Jason Anderson/Brad 
Sanford 

00:50:34 

Nocked & Loaded TV Dave Perkins 00:35:45 

Every Movie Ever (3 episodes) Joe Scholz, Rick Bostrom, 
Ben Daniels/Ryan 

Frieundschuh, Gavin Van 
Trease/Eric Houston 

01:11:26 

Bad Movie Bros Video Club/Eric Houston 00:38:33 

Puzzled (4 episodes) Gavin Van Trease/Eric 
Houston 

07:30:21 

Cornerstone Church (3 episodes)  Rick Bostrom 01:22:57 

Christ Lutheran Church (5 episodes) Jacob Nessman/Chance 
Amundson 

05:37:15 

The Power of Love (6 episodes) Rick Larson 03:00:00 

LovePower (6 episodes) Ann Sandell 06:00:00 

Rice Creek Watershed District Meeting (2 
episodes)  

Theresa Stasica 02:52:41 

Hope Church (4 episodes) Cindy Hardy 02:47:59 

37 New Programs  32:27:31 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Programs Produced by NMTV Staff 

 

Title Producer Runtime 

Anoka County Board Meeting (8/14/18) T.J. Tronson 00:23:18 

Anoka County Board Meeting (8/28/18) T.J. Tronson 00:19:34 

Blue Heron Days Parade From the Inside T.J. Tronson 00:02:50 

NMTV News (6 episodes) Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 02:07:51 

Minnesota Soda Festival at Blue Sun 
Soda Shop 

Danika Peterson 00:04:58 

Ham Lake Farmer's Market Danika Peterson 00:04:50 

Centennial Library Closes for Remodel Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:03:47 

Lexington Redevelopment Project Ben Hayle 00:02:58 

Blue Heron Days Preview Trevor Scholl 00:04:00 

Night to Unite Trevor Scholl 00:03:26 

Waldoch Farm Garden Tours Trevor Scholl 00:03:17 

Blaine Community Gardens Trevor Scholl 00:06:15 

Blue Heron Days Parade Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:51:52 

Girls Soccer: Armstrong/Blaine Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 01:46:01 

Boys Soccer Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 01:46:33 

Football: Irondale/Spring Lake Park Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 02:28:13 

Sports Den (2 episodes) Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:49:23 

Coach & Captains: Spring Lake Park 
Football 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:25 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Swim and Dive Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:04:35 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Swim and 
Dive 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:38 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Volleyball Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:14 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Boys Soccer Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:02:59 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Girls 
Soccer 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:04:07 

Coach & Captains: Spring Lake Park Girls 
Tennis 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:10 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Girls Tennis Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:04 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Football Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:33 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Football Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:45 

32 New Programs  11:39:39 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by City Staff 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Blaine City Council Meeting (8/2/18) Blaine Staff 01:33:38 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/15/18) 

Blaine Staff 01:06:57 

Blaine City Council Meeting (8/16/18) Blaine Staff 01:28:13 

Blaine Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Meeting (8/21/18) 

Blaine Staff 00:21:053 

Blaine Park Board Meeting (8/28/18) Blaine Staff 00:51:28 

Centerville City Council Meeting (8/8/18) Centerville Staff 01:35:04 

Centerville City Council Meeting (8/22/18) Centerville Staff 01:02:47 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(8/15/18) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:24:10 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(8/15/18) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:55:43 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(8/28/18) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:05:47 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (8/6/18) Ham Lake Staff 01:00:36 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/13/18) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:33:05 



Title cont. Producer cont. Runtime cont. 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (8/20/18) Ham Lake Staff 00:38:15 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(8/27/18) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:30:00 

Lexington City Council Meeting (8/2/18) Lexington Staff 01:18:14 

Lexington City Council Meeting (8/16/18) Lexington Staff 00:38:08 

Lino Lakes Environmental Board Meeting 
(8/1/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 01:14:14 

Lino Lakes Planning & Zoning Meeting 
(8/8/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 01:26:13 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(8/13/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 00:16:05 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(8/27/18) 

Lino Lakes Staff 00:22:42 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(8/6/18) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 02:14:15 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(8/20/18) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 00:48:44 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission 
Meeting (8/27/18) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 00:34:05 

23 New Programs  21:00:16  New Hours 

 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this monthly report please contact 

Heidi Arnson at 763.231.2801 or harnson@northmetrotv.com. 












































































	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Police Report (August 2018).pdf
	Blank Page

	New Business - Approval of Parking Lot Lease.pdf
	Blank Page

	New Business - Conditional Approval for Building Permit Issuance for Public Storage.pdf
	ADPB236.tmp
	To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council
	From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer
	Date:  September 12, 2018
	Subject: Public Storage Building Permit


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Correspondence all.pdf
	Correspondence - NMTV August 2018 City Update.pdf
	Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include:

	Correspondence - NMTV August 2018 Update.pdf
	NMTV News Highlights
	Farewell to Ben
	Drone Service Gears Up
	Lectures On Location
	Blue Heron Days Celebration
	Return of High School Sports
	The end of August means the beginning of a new season of high school sports.  The Sports team jumped right in with the production of 10 episodes of Coaches & Captains, which highlights coaches, players and team objectives for the new school year. Three games, including soccer and football, were covered live and recorded for additional playbacks.  Sports Den, the weekly sports highlight show also started its new season with two episodes in August.  This year the Sports Department is also producing a short video highlight of every game they produce.  Those highlights are available on the NMTV YouTube page.
	City Productions
	Production equipment consulting for cities and schools 

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page



